TOWN OF JUPITER
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
FINAL MINUTES
DECEMBER 9, 2025 7:00 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER:
Chair Kevin Kirn called the meeting to order at 7:02p.m.

ATTENDANCE:

Chair Kevin Kirn, Vice Chair Beth Kelso, Comm. Marty Rogol, Comm. Thompson, Comm. Karen
Vinson and Cynthia Blum, 2" Alternate (non-voting member); John Sickler, Director of Planning
& Zoning; Stephanie Thoburn, Asst. Director of Planning and Zoning; Garret Watson, Principal
Planner; Scott Thatcher, Principal Planner; Joseph Dray, Planner; Thomas Baird, Esq., Town
Attorney and Vernisa Ayers, Secretary.

CITIZEN CONIMENTS: None

MINUTES:

1. Motion to approve the minutes from November 13, 2025 Planning and Zoning Meeting
by Comm. Vinson; seconded by Comm. Rogol. Final: Motion passed unanimously, with
a 6-0 vote.

SWEARING IN:

Secretary Vernisa Ayers conducted the swearing-in of witnesses for all items on the agenda.

REGULAR AGENDA:

OLD BUSINESS: None.

NEW BUSINESS:

2. The Golf Channel Games — Application for a Class “B” Special Permit" to hold an event

known as “The Golf Channel Games” on December 17, 2025, between 5:00 p.m. and
11:00 p.m. located at 115 Eagle Tree Terrace, Jupiter, FL 33477 (Trump National Golf
Club Jupiter). (PZ 25-6621)

Applicant presentation: Donaldson Hearing, representative of Cotleur & Hearing,
presented a PowerPoint overview of the proposed project. Mr. Scott Russell, Golf
Channel Games Show Producer, was also in attendance.

Staff presentation: Principal Planner, Scott Thatcher, reviewed the staff report. Mr.
Thatcher noted that a correction needed to be made to Exhibit 1, Condition 2. The
condition lists the hours as 7:00 p.m. to 11:00 p.m.; however, the actual event will begin
at 5:00 p.m.

Commissioners asked questions of the Applicant and Staff:

Comm. Blum questioned the timeliness of the application, asking why it was submitted at
this stage. Mr. Russell explained that the event was finalized in September, approved in
October, submitted in November and this was the first available meeting due to the




PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
December 9, 2025

holidays.

Vice Chair Kelso asked if the 36-day timeline was an exception to the 60-day
requirement. Mr. Sickler explained that many “A” permits are administratively approved
through reduced or expedited reviews, which the code allows, and noted that most B
permits are submitted on time, though complex proposals sometimes cannot meet tight
deadlines and do not move forward. He added that this application was well-organized,
allowing staff to accommodate its review. Vice Chair Kelso questioned why the
breakdown of the event facilities would continue until December 23 after the December
17 event. Mr. Russell explained that was due to the lighting needed for the golf course
requires 58 light towers, which takes time to assemble and disassemble, and setup and
breakdown will occur during daylight hours only, limiting the available work time. Vice
Chair Kelso noted that the only permitted temporary sign was a 32-square-foot banner
and requested a condition allowing temporary directional signage at FAU to guide
vehicles to parking, particularly at night. Mr. Thatcher agreed that such conditions could
be added, noting that FAU provides internal signage and similar signage could be
provided for this event. Vice Chair Kelso then sought clarification on the parking
numbers, noting that 1,200 spaces were referenced in the Statement of Use versus
2,500 in the presentation. Mr. Hearing explained that attendance could reach 2,500, with
an average of two people per vehicle, and additional parking is available at Trump
National for residents, production and celebrities.

Chair Kirn inquired as to whether ride-share services such as Uber would be permitted.
Mr. Russell confirmed that Uber would be allowed, with a designated drop-off and pick-
up area at Trump National at a single pick-up location to limit disruption to residents.

Comm. Thompson inquired about the timing of the application given the public
announcement of the event, asked whether Secret Service protection would be required,
and questioned when setup of the 58 light towers would begin. Mr. Russell explained the
event was promoted before contracts were finalized and that the permitting process
began only after contracts were signed. He confirmed Secret Service will be present due
to Trump family attendance and stated that setup of the light towers would begin
immediately and take approximately two weeks.

Comm. Blum inquired about the meaning of the three-minute sound interval. Mr. Russell
explained that there won't be constant sound for more than three minutes, since only
three holes are played and there’s downtime moving players. Ms. Thoburn clarified that
if there’s a noise complaint, an officer will measure sound at the property line in three-
minute intervals to see if it is a sustained average of 70 dBA. The sound may go up or
down during that time, but the overall level is measured over the full three minutes.
Comm. Blum also noted that signage only on FAU might be missed by drivers off 1-95,
suggesting signage on Donald Ross as well to prevent people going to Trump National
and turning around, which could cause traffic issues. Mr. Russell said they’ll add signage
as needed, email all ticket holders directions through TickPick, and that only vendors
and VIPs will park onsite at Trump; everyone else will use FAU and shuttles, with
rideshare as the only other direct access. Vice Chair Kelso suggested that the condition
regarding directional signage be at the discretion of staff.

Commissioner Vinson, Rogol did not have questions.

Public Comment: None.




PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
December 9, 2025

Deliberation by Commission: None.

Motion:

Comm. Kelso moved to recommend approval of the requested Class “B” Special Permit
application with the conditions outlines in Exhibit 1of the Staff Report, subject to two
modifications: (1) adding temporary directional signs near the offsite parking area at the
discretion of staff, and (2) correcting the scrivener’s error in Condition 2 to reflect the
hours of 5:00 PM to 11:00 PM; seconded by Comm. Thompson. Final: Motion passed
unanimously, with a 6-0 vote.

3. Getz Subdivision— Applications for a 0.36+ acre property located on the north side of
Center Street, approximately 1500 feet west of North Pennock Lane, to request the
following.

A. Voluntary annexation;

B. Small-scale Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment from Palm Beach County
(PBC) Low Residential, 1 Unit per Acre (LR-1), to Town of Jupiter (TOJ) Low
Density Residential; and (Acting as the Local Planning Agency)

C. Zoning Map amendment from PBC Single-Family Residential (RS) to TOJ
Compact Single-Family Residential (R-1A). (PZ #25-6587, 6589, 6590)

Applicant presentation: Samuel Polacek, representative of Cotleur & Hearing,
presented a PowerPoint overview of the proposed project.

Staff presentation: Joseph Dray, Planner, reviewed the staff report.

| Commissioners asked questions of the Applicant and Staff:

Chair Kirn inquired whether there are many sites that are this tightly embedded within
the Town but are still not part of the Town of Jupiter. Staff responded that there are
several such pockets, with the most significant being Jonathan’s Landing.

Chair Kirn inquired as to what the County’s Transfer of Development Rights (TDR)
program entails. Mr. Hearing responded that Palm Beach County’s Transfer of
Development Rights program regulates density based on the land use district. Mr.
Hearing explained that the property is designated LR-1, allowing one unit per acre, but
with the purchase of one TDR, the density may increase to two units per acre. Mr.
Hearing added that the TDR was purchased from the County, recorded in the public
records, and the plat has been recorded, making it a legal lot of record.

Chair Kirn asked whether the Town honors the County land uses and zoning districts of
properties being annexed into the Town. Mr. Sickler responded that staff strives to align
zoning regulations with the assigned or proposed land use of a property. Mr. Sickler
explained that the R-1A zoning district was specifically established to accommodate the
annexation of developed County properties, as County zoning allows reduced setbacks
and increased lot coverage that are not permitted under the Town’s R-1 zoning district,
which applies to most single-family properties in the Town. Mr. Sickler noted that the R-
1A district was created to facilitate the zoning of annexed communities such as the
Shores, Cinquez Park, and others. If the properties were zoned R-1, it could result in
nonconformities between Town regulations and the conditions under which the
properties were originally developed, which staff sought to avoid so as not to discourage




PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
December 9, 2025

annexation.

Comm. Kelso asked whether the large mango tree would remain with the development.
Mr. Hearing clarified that the mango tree is located west of the site, on the left side of the
private access drive, and is not part of the development property.

Comm. Kelso asked if the applicant would have another water service option or if
annexation is required to retain Jupiter water service. Mr. Hearing responded that Jupiter
water service may be provided without annexation, that the property is already a legal lot
of record with no subdivision occurring, and that while water service has been approved,
Town policy encourages annexation when feasible.

Commissioners Rogol, Vinson, Thompson, and Blum did not have questions.

Public Comment: None.

Deliberation by Commission: None.

Motion:

Item 3A - Comm. Thompson moved to recommend approval of the requested Voluntary
annexation application; seconded by Comm. Vinson. Final: Motion passed unanimously,
with a 6-0 vote.

Item 3B - Comm. Vinson moved to recommend approval of the requested Small-scale
Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment from Palm Beach County (PBC) Low
Residential, 1 Unit per Acre (LR-1), to Town of Jupiter (TOJ) Low Density Residential
application; seconded by Comm. Rogol. Final: Motion passed unanimously, with a 6-0
vote.

Item 3C - Comm. Blum moved to recommend approval of the requested Zoning Map
amendment from PBC Single-Family Residential (RS) to TOJ Compact Single-Family
Residential (R-1A) application; seconded by Comm. Vinson. Final: Motion passed
unanimously, with a 6-0 vote.

4. Beacon Park — Applications for 57.7+ acres of property, generally located south of
Jupiter Community Park, west of Limestone Creek Road, north of Indiantown Road, and
east of the 1-95 interchange for the following:

A. Future Land Use Map amendment from General Industrial with Bioscience
Research Protection Overlay to Low Density Residential, on 34.3+ acres located
on the east side of Island Way;

B. Future Land Use Map amendment from General Industrial with Bioscience
Research Protection Overlay to Medium Density Residential, on 23.4+ acres
located on the west side of Island Way; (Acting as the Local Planning Agency)

C. Zoning Map amendment from 1-4, Industrial, High Technology and Employment
Center District to R1-A, Residential, Compact Single-Family District, on 34.3+
acres located on the east side of Island Way; and,

D. Zoning Map amendment from I-4, Industrial, High Technology and Employment
Center District to R-3, Residential, Limited Multi-Family District, on 23.4+ acres
located on the west side of Island Way. (PZ#6515,6516,6517,6518)



PLANNING & ZONING CONMISSION
December 9, 2025

Applicant presentation: Zach Ciciera, representative of Cotleur & Hearing, presented a
PowerPoint overview of the proposed project.

Staff presentation: Principal Planner, Garret Watson, reviewed the staff report.

Commissioners asked questions of the Applicant and Staff:

Comm Kelso asked what would happen to the property’s zoning and agreement after the
existing 20-year term expires in 2031. Mr. Sickler clarified that once the agreement
expires, the property would revert to it assigned |-4 zoning. Mr. Baird stated that the
Development Agreement could be extended.

Comm Kelso expressed concern about limited industrial space availability in the Town,
noting that while some capacity exists outside the Town, industrial space within Jupiter is
very tight. Comm Kelso stated that changing the use would further shift the Town toward
a bedroom community.

Comm Kelso asked whether workforce housing would be required on the eastern parcel.
Mr. Sickler responded that workforce housing requirements would be addressed during
site plan approval in accordance with the Town’s workforce housing program.

Comm Kelso stated that the west side of the property is well suited for industrial use and
that the existing agreement’s special allowances for uses such as banks and daycares
are important. She noted that residential development extends north to Martin County,
creating a lack of nearby services, and emphasized that this parcel is key to providing
commercial and industrial services to northern residents and reducing traffic impacts on
Indiantown Road.

Mr. Hearing emphasized that while market demand and uses are important
considerations, the I-4 district is not comparable to traditional industrial zoning such as I-
1 or I-2. He noted that the 1-4 zoning has proven challenging and ineffective since the
2011 development agreement, as it is geared toward specialized uses such as
bioscience or high-tech manufacturing rather than traditional industrial or flex space. He
explained that ancillary uses cannot be developed without the primary industrial use,
which has not materialized, and that prior proposals for alternative uses were met with
community opposition. He concluded that the issue is ultimately a policy decision and
that any potential split of the property would require zoning other than I-4, as the I-4
designation has not been viable.

Mr. Sickler noted that the development agreement uses are listed on page 112 of the
agenda and clarified that, although |-4 zoning is restrictive and focused on bioscience,
the agreement allows additional uses. These include corporate and business offices,
daycares, hotel conference centers, indoor recreation, banks, dental and medical clinics,
light industrial manufacturing outside of bioscience, as well as limited restaurant,
warehouse, and wholesale uses, which extend beyond the typical I-4 classification.

Comm. Kelso asked whether a development similar to Harbourside, with uses such as
restaurants, hotels, banks, and other services, could be built to benefit nearby residents
Mr. Sickler responded that uses would be limited primarily to retail, with some personal
service uses allowed, but noted that those uses are quite limited. Comm. Kelso asked
for clarification on the differences between I-1, -2, and I-4 zoning districts. Mr. Sickler
responded that |-2 is the Town’s most intensive general industrial district, allowing uses
such as automotive repair and paint, contractor offices, business offices, and light



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
December 9, 2025

manufacturing, noting that some light manufacturing is already permitted under the
existing development agreement.

Mr. Baird explained that the property was originally zoned I-4 to attract bioscience-type
businesses. The property owner at the time, who sought to develop a shopping center,
challenged the zoning through a property rights claim, which resulted in a mediated
development agreement expanding the permitted uses beyond |-4 to include those
identified by Mr. Sickler. Although the property later changed ownership, the
development agreement remained in effect for 20 years. Despite all permitted uses
being available during that period, none were developed, and the current applicant is
now proposing residential development.

Chair Kirn asked whether the project is directly connected to Island Way South in terms
of approvals. Mr. Sickler responded that it is not directly connected, but noted that the
applicant intends to dedicate right-of-way on the south side of the property to contribute
toward completion of Island Way. Mr. Sickler added that this dedication would be
addressed through a future site plan application, and that all related applications would
return to the Town Council together for second reading. Chair Kirn asked whether Town
staff would support R-3 zoning on the west-side parcel if residential use were approved.
Mr. Sickler responded that R-3 is typically high density, but that medium-density
residential could also be consistent.

Chair Kirn asked whether the applicant had considered development on the south side
of the west parcel, noting that the land configuration appears shallow and challenging for
efficient commercial or medical office development, and asked if this contributed to the
difficulty. Mr. Simon responded that while the site widens toward the east, past designs
were limited by water retention needs and the requirement to establish industrial uses
first. He noted that although the site offered highway visibility and some smaller buildings
were accommodated, the layout was not ideal and limited interest from potential users.

Comm. Vinson asked if the bioscience overlay on the west side property could be
removed and the site converted to R3 or another feasible designation. Mr. Sickler
explained that the Overlay does not restrict uses and could be removed by a land use
amendment. He noted the Overlay is a protective measure requiring a four-fifths Council
vote to change the property to residential or commercial retail. Its purpose is to preserve
industrial uses. Comm. Vinson asked about wetlands, Mr. Sickler stated he was not
aware of any on site, only drainage water bodies.

Comm. Vinson stated that the main concern is the predominance of residential uses in
Jupiter compared to commercial or industrial. Comm. Vinson noted that converting both
properties to residential seems inconsistent with the Town’s prior planning, especially
since Jupiter is nearly 90% built out and there are limited options for other uses. Comm.
Vinson asked which zoning limits the building height. Mr. Sickler clarified that the
distinction is between R1 and R1A zoning and that R1 allows two-story buildings,
whereas R1A permits three-story buildings.

Comm. Rogol raised concerns about removing the Bioscience Research Overlay, noting
that the Town’s strategy has been to encourage commercial and biotech development,
citing companies like Scripps and Max Planck. Comm. Rogol questioned whether there
has been any study showing the Overlay is no longer needed. Mr. Sickler responded
that no specific study has been conducted. The Council previously chose to end multi-
jurisdictional oversight of the Overlay, but maintained the Overlay in the Town’s



PLANNING & ZONING CONMMISSION
December 9, 2025

Comprehensive Plan. Staff has identified inconsistencies with the proposed applications,
making it a significant policy question for the Council.

Comm. Rogol asked if there is any data showing the area cannot remain bioscience. Mr.
Sickler said there has been interest in developing the properties for bioscience uses,
including the Hawkeye property to the south and a nine-acre parcel west of the Turnpike,
though projects have stalled for various reasons. He noted that concerns have always
existed regarding the intensity of development and its impact on intersections such as
Island Way and Indiantown Road.

Mr. Sickler referred to the 2022 Jupiter Area Study update, which evaluated vacant
parcels, approved but unbuilt trips, and the existing road network to ensure adequate
traffic capacity. Mitigation strategies include completion of Indiantown Road expansions,
Island Way South, and additional turning lanes. Based on this analysis, approximately
558,000 square feet could be reasonably developed on the property under the research
and development land use category. Mr. Sickler added that past proposals often stalled
due to the requirement that industrial properties maintain a predominance of industrial
uses, while market demand favored commercial or non-industrial uses. Previous
applications included hotels, retail strips with restaurants, hospital proposals,
manufacturing projects, and corporate developments, but none reached completion.

Chair Kirn asked what aspects of the Overlay make the land attractive to bioscience
users. Mr. Sickler explained that the Overlay protects the land for industrial use and was
designed to prevent residential conversion, particularly during the 2004-2008 housing
bubble. The Bioscience Overlay designation originated from a commitment to Governor
Bush and Scripps, with a plan involving North County municipality to attract 8 million
square feet of spin-off development. Incentives through the state and Business
Development Board have also been available to attract life science users.

Chair Kirn added from his experience developing biotech labs across North America that
the biotech market has collapsed since COVID. The initial high demand has dropped
significantly, and much lab work can now be done digitally, reducing the need for
physical lab space. While Scripps remains a center for biotech research, large-scale
biotech expansion to South Florida is unlikely.

Comm. Rogol suggested that the Council should make a specific finding on the Overlay
before proceeding. Chair Kirn noted that the Board’s role is to provide recommendations
on the Overlay, land use, and zoning.

Chair Kirn emphasized that traffic constraints on Indiantown Road limit further
development capacity. Given the Town’s need for workforce and affordable housing,
converting the land could help meet housing needs while managing future traffic. While
he is reluctant to give up developable land for local jobs, he noted housing availability is
essential for workforce support. Comm. Rogol concluded that while the likelihood of
biotech development is low, he would feel more comfortable providing the Council with
substantive information to support any decision to remove the Overlay.



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
December 9, 2025

Comm. Blum asked about the lot sizes on the east versus west side if the property were
developed for housing. Mr. Watson responded that lot sizes and parameters would be
detailed during the site plan review. Preliminary plans are under staff review, and final
details will be presented in a future site plan application.

Public Comment: None.

Deliberation by Commission:

Comm. Kelso was supportive of giving the developer flexibility so they could balance
industrial, commercial, and residential uses, rather than converting the property entirely
to residential. She noted that making it all residential risks turning the town into a
“bedroom community” and reduces its economic vitality. She emphasized the
importance of preserving commercial and industrial opportunities.

Chair Kirn asked whether the west side could have more flexible uses beyond I-4
zoning. Mr. Sickler explained that changing zoning or amending the development
agreement would be a separate process after the Town Council makes its policy
decision.

Comm. Vinson asked whether the Bioscience Overlay could be removed without
changing the underlying zoning. Mr. Sickler confirmed that a motion could support
removing the Overlay while leaving the land use and zoning intact, allowing more
flexibility in the future. Chair Kirn noted that any recommendation would ultimately go to
the Town Council.

Comm. Rogol questioned how to balance industrial versus residential uses given limited
information about market viability. Mr. Baird advised that the Board should focus on the
application before them and make a recommendation based on its merits. Chair Kirn
reinforced that the recommendation should be made with the information available.

Motion:

Item 4A - Comm. Vinson moved to recommend approval of the requested EAST SIDE
Future Land Use Map amendment from General Industrial with Bioscience Research
Protection Overlay to Low Density Residential, on 34.3+ acres application including
removing the property from the overlay; seconded by Comm. Blum. Final: Motion
passed, with a 5-1 vote with Comm. Rogol dissenting.

Item 4B - Comm. Vinson moved to recommend denial of the requested WEST SIDE
Future Land Use Map amendment from General Industrial with Bioscience Research
Protection Overlay to Medium Density Residential, on 23.4+ acres with the
recommendation for the Town Council to consider removing the property from the
overlay and expanding the uses allowed on the property; seconded by Comm. Blum.
Final: Motion passed, with a 5-1 vote with Comm. Thompson dissenting.

Item 4C - Comm. Blum moved to recommend approval of the EAST SIDE (34.3+ acres)
Zoning Map amendment from I-4, Industrial, High Technology and Employment Center
District to R-1 (Residential, Single-Family District), based on findings 9 and 10 on Page
12 of the staff report including a trip cap and to allow for workforce housing; seconded by
Comm. Vinson. Final: Motion passed unanimously, with a 6-0.



PLANNING & ZONING CONMMISSION
December 9, 2025

Item 4D - Comm. Blum moved to recommend denial of the requested WEST SIDE
Zoning Map amendment from -4, Industrial, High Technology and Employment Center
District to R-3, Residential, Limited Multi-Family District, on 23.4+ acres application;
seconded by Comm. Vinson. Final: Motion passed, with a 5-1 vote with Comm.
Thompson dissenting.

STAFF UPDATE:
Planning and Zoning Director reported on recent Town Council actions on Commission items.

ADJOURN:
Chair Kevin Kirn adjourned the meeting at 8:56 p.m.

%r‘/ A \(J\/\/ L denee (\wwz

Kevin Kirn, Chair Vernisa Ayers, Secretiry






